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SUMMARY DESCRIITION 

Built between 1815 and 1835, and located on state Route 612 in Greensville County, the 
Alexander W. Batte House is a one-and-a-half-story hall-parlor house built on a fieldstone 
foundation. A massive chimney of fieldstone is located at each end of the house. Two windows 
and a door are asymmetrically positioned on the north facade. The south elevation, also of three 
bays, possesses two doors and a window. The site, atop a high rise of ground which is 
approached via a curving lane, adds to the perception of the house being very high and narrow. 

The nomination consists of two contributing buildings, the main house and an early nineteenth- 
century barn. A late-nineteenth century family cemetery is considered non-contributing since it 
does not fall within the period of significance. A modern dwelling is counted as a non-
contributing building. 

ARCHITECTURAL ANALYSIS 

The Alexander W. Batte House, a one-and-a-half-story modest frame dwelling, sits upon a stone 
foundation with exterior stone chimneys at each end. Some of the original beaded weatherboard 
survives as does a boxed cornice. Decorative endboards reflecting the general cornice profile and 
flared eaves provide a touch of style to the exterior design. 
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The Alexander W. Batte House, which is located in Greensville County, is a 
rare example of a hall-parlor-plan dwelling. The architectural evidence 
suggests that Batte constructed the house in two building campaigns between 
1815 and 1835. The simple design of the house and its modest size suggest 
that Batte, who was a large landowner, declined--unlike many in his 
economic class--to invest his capital in an ostentatious dwelling. Few 
such small houses have survived in this part of Southside Virginia. The 
Batte House, together with an antebellum barn that stands nearby, offers an 
intriguing look at an early nineteenth-century Southside farmstead. 

, 

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 

Alexander Watson Batte, who built the Batte House between 1815 and 1835, 
inherited the land upon which the house stands from his father, William 
Batte. The elder Batte purchased the property from Richard Cocke and Adam 
Tapley in November 1778. When he died in 1789, William Batte left it to 
his widow Sarah during her lifetime, and after her death to Alexander W. 
Batte. The tract first was referred to as The Old Place in documents filed 
with the county court clerk by Sarah Batte in 1789. 

The architectural evidence suggests that Alexander W. Batte constructed the 
house in two stages between 1815 and 1835. He also built the nearby barn, 
probably during the same period. The supporting evidence offered by the 
county tax records is inconclusive. Batte owned several tracts that 
contained buildings; the county tax commissioner appears to have been lax 
in recording changes in housing stock. 

Alexander W. Batte died about 1853. His heirs sold the property to James 
Brown, a prominent local planter, merchant, and land ~ p e ~ ~ l a t O r ,in 
December 1853. Brown eventually acquired more than 1,400 acres of land,
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Boundary Justification 

The boundary includes the main farmhouse and barn that  have h i s t o r i c a l l y  been part o f  the 
Batte House complex. 

S w  continuation sheet 

11. Form Prepand BY 
nemenltle William M. Pruett 
organlzatlon dale 
streel 6 number tebphona 
city or town h p o r i a  state VA zip cede 



United State8 Department of the Interlor 
National Park Service 

National Register of Historic Places 
Continuation Sheet 

Section number 7 Page 1 

The house was built in two sections. The earlier or eastern section, built sometime between 1815 
and 1835, consists of one room and an attic on a high cellar to which there was access only from 
the outside. The foundations and chimneys have recently been rebuilt due to deteriorated mortar. 

All framing members are hewn and pit sawn, the nails are machine-headed cut nails, and the 
trim is of Federal-era design. Other evidence of two-stage construction is seen in the interior 
sill, differences in the levels of the flooring in the two first-floor rooms, differences in trim, and 
the evidence of gable weatherboards on an interior rafter pair. The second section must have 
been built relatively soon after the first because it too contains all of the era-defining features 
noted above. Although much of the framing in the second section was reused as many as three 
times, it is still likely that the addition was also built in the 1815-1835 period. 

The original one-room dwelling contained a pair of front (north) and rear (south) doors and 
windows. The windows had simple beaded casements on the exterior; no interior trim survives. 
(Stored in the barn are several sash that are mortised and tenoned together and contain narrow 
Federal-style muntins.) Both doorways are framed in three-part architrave trim; the front 
doorway has fairly conventional Federal cyma moldings similar to those used in both sections 
of the house. The rear door is trimmed with beaded caveto moldings, another typical Federal 
feature. Both doors have raised panels on the exterior and plain faces on the interior; both are 
hung on HL hinges secured with screws and cut nails with leather washers. All first-floor doors 
originally had surface-mounted box locks. 

The walls of the first-floor room in this early section were originally plastered and although the 
evidence is inconclusive, may have had a chair rail. An early beaded baseboard survives that is 
similar to that used throughout the rest of the house in both construction periods. An original 
stair from the main floor to the attic room remains largely intact despite later modifications. In 
its original form the stairs were enclosed with a plaster soffit and trimmed in wood 
comerboards. The treads, risers, and skirting all appear to be original, as well as the flush-board 
wainscoting that runs to the west side of the front door at the foot of the stair, but does not 
appear to have continued around the room. 

The addition of the room to the west converted the building to a small hall-parlor plan house. 
This room is smaller than the earlier room and has only a rear (south) entrance, but it is 
trimmed with a flush-board wainscot capped with a wide beaded chair rail. Both first-floor 
rooms are heated with fireplaces. 
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The attic was revamped, apparently at the time of the addition. In its remodeled state, the 
kneewalls, underside of the rafters, and collars were plastered. Both rooms above the stairs were 
entered through rosehead, wrought-nailed, hand-planed board-and-batten doors that are beaded 
on the passage face. The doors are hung on small HL hinges and secured with screws and 
wrought rosehead nails (one of these doors has the scribe marks for the nailing pattern of the 
battens). The door jambs and baseboards are simply beaded boards. The flooring ,as in the 
rests of the house, is gauged and undercut heart pine, random-width boards. The undercutting 
of these floorboards seem to point to an early nineteenth century date, since this technology was 
abandoned fairly early in the century. The west room above the stairs retains its original brick 
hearth. 

Approximately seventy-five to one hundred feet west of the Batte House is a large depression 
that suggests the location of an outbuilding. Approximately two hundred yards to the west is 
large barn that dates to the early nineteenth century. 

The barn possesses most of its original beaded weatherboard. All of the interior flooring, stairs 
to the loft, and support beams are original to the time of construction of the house. It is 
constructed of hewn and straight-sawn timber and machine-cut nails. Like the house, it is 
traditionally framed, utilizing mortise-and-tenon joints for the wall systems and rafter pairs. 

The barn possesses two front doors, and a joint in the first-floor space suggests an original 
layout of two rooms. While both doors are board-and-batten types with wrought nails, they are 
not original to the building. They feature a wooden box lock with double throw bolts, butts 
boards beaded on the exterior face, and a variety of wrought hardware, especially a wrought 
hasp that was made to conform to the profile of the door jamb. An original sheathed kneewall 
implies that the attic of the barn served the function of grain storage. The barn's northern and 
western sheds are floored in cobblestones to form a drainage system. 
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and operated stores at Hicksford and in nearby Sussex County. His farming 

operations were centered on tobacco, wheat, and pork. 


Brown died in 1855 and left the tract containing the Batte House to his 

son, James David Feilding Brown. Because the young Brown was only nine 

years old and an orphan, the property was managed by a court-appointed 

guardian, Henry Jarratt, who hired an overseer to operate the farm. After 

the Civil War, in which Brown likely served, he attended Washington 

College, graduating in 1869. He later was graduated from the law school at 

the University of Virginia, but chose to become a Baptist minister. In 

1874 he sold the Batte House tract to Isham Roland, of North Carolina. 


In 1881 Alexander Rae, a native of Scotland who emigrated to Virginia after 

the Civil War, purchased the tract from Roland. He was one of a large 

number of Scots who had settled in northwestern Greensville County with the 

encouragement of Virginia immigration officials, who looked to foreign-born 

laborers to fill the labor shortage created by Emancipation. 


Rae sold the property in 1882 to John Cowie, a stonemason who was his 

brother-in-law. After Cowie's death in 1895 the farm remained in the hands 

of his descendants until Frances Goodrich Webb bought it in 1951. Webb 

sold it in 1956 to Edward A. and Sarah W. Squire, who conveyed it to their 

son and his wife, Peter W. and Nancy B. Squire, in 1974. Recognizing the 

significance of the house, the Squires have begun a careful restoration. 

They also have transformed the property into an active, working farm once 

more. 
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